

# **SOCIETY FOR ANDHRA PRADESH NETWORK (SAPNET)**

(Registered under the Andhra Pradesh Societies Registration Act, 2001)

## **MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION AND BYE-LAWS**

(Including revisions as of September 2006)



**Society for Andhra Pradesh Network**

Mana TV Studios, Dr.BRAOU Campus, Road No.46

Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad – 500033

Ph: 040-23556037, Fax:040-23556075

[www.sapnet.gov.in](http://www.sapnet.gov.in)



సంఘముల రిజిస్ట్రారు వారి కార్యాలయము  
హైదరాబాదు

OFFICE OF THE REGISTRAR OF SOCIETIES  
HYDERABAD

Certificate of Registration

రిజిస్ట్రేషన్ సర్టిఫికేట్

2000...లో...న విజయం  
[NO. 370 OF 2003...]

అంధ్రప్రదేశ్ సంఘముల రిజిస్ట్రేషన్ చట్టము 2001 క్రింద  
వారు రిజిస్ట్రారు అనుమతించి యాంధ్ర విజయంగా నమోదుచేయబడినది.

I hereby certify that SOCIETY FOR ANHRA PRADESH NET WORK  
(SAF NET), Road No:46, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad.

is this day registered under the Andhra Pradesh (Society Registration Act, 2001.  
ఈ సంఘము, హైదరాబాద్ నగర పరిషత్తు  
వారు... వేదకులారా చేయబడినది.

Given under my hand and seal at Hyderabad this the 22nd  
day of March TWO THOUSAND AND Three

OFFICE SEAL



*[Signature]*  
సంఘముల రిజిస్ట్రారు  
REGISTRAR OF SOCIETIES  
సంఘముల రిజిస్ట్రారు  
హైదరాబాదు

# Document - I

## Memorandum of Association

### 1. Preamble :

WHEREAS the Government of Andhra Pradesh has been making pioneering efforts for promoting the use of Information Technology for the all round development of the State. Information Technology is increasingly permeating every area of human endeavour and has radically transformed the way societies work, play, gather and access knowledge and govern themselves. The Government has clearly recognized the strategic importance of information technology in creating a competitive economy equipped to face the challenges and exploit the opportunities of the future. The broad objectives of the IT policy of the State are to use information technology for economic development of the State improving the quality of life of the citizen and providing good governance.

And WHEREAS, the Government has recognized that development of Information Technology infrastructure is key to the successful achievement of the above objectives and all the efforts essentially need availability of robust telecommunication infrastructure with adequate bandwidth across the length and breadth of the State. The Government has therefore, embarked on a multi-channel approach for promoting the creation and utilization of bandwidth in the terrestrial, satellite and wireless modes. It is in this background the Government of Andhra Pradesh has signed MOU with ISRO for effective utilization of the satellite communications. The satellite-based communication network will be utilized in the following areas with mutual cooperation.

- **Distance Education:** To provide distance education for schools, colleges, professional courses, institutions of high importance across the State.
- **Telemedicine:** To provide health care & telemedicine.

development extension services.

- **E-governance**
- **Awareness-building** among self-help groups
- **Human Resource Development**
- **Community Internet Infrastructure:** The network will also extend Internet facilities, IP based voice and Intranet / Internet applications to villages in Andhra Pradesh

**2. Name of the Society:**

The name of the Society shall be “SOCIETY FOR ANDHRA PRADESH NETWORK” (SAPNET).

**3. Situation of the Registered Office:**

The registered office of the Society shall be situated in the State of Andhra Pradesh and presently it is situated at:

Dr. B.R.Ambedkar Open University  
Road No.46, Prof. G.Ram Reddy Marg,  
Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad-500 033.  
Phone No.:+91-40-2355 6037  
Fax No. :+91-40-2355 6075  
Email : ceo\_sapnet@ap.gov.in

**4. Main Objectives:**

The objectives of the Society are as follows:-

- To operate as a ‘not for profit’ Society.
- To conduct, promote and facilitate distance education using satellite communication for Human Resource Development (HRD), e-governance, telemedicine, and rural development.
- To investigate, study and report on particular developments, management problems and policies related to satellite communications, either on its own initiative or on reference to it by government and public bodies.

- iv. To conduct training programmes for different user departments.
- v. To develop a standard library of contents relevant to the objectives of the Society.
- vi. To collect user charge from Depts./Agencies for using the facility.
- vii. To facilitate, design, produce and schedule programmes.
- viii. To get feedback from viewers / user departments.
- ix. To develop, install, commission and maintain studios, Earth Station and other infrastructure for production, transmission and reception.
- x. To maintain regular logbook and keep up-time of 99.9%.
- xi. To collaborate with similar institutions in India and other countries in furtherance of its objectives.
- xii. To do any other necessary and consequential work.

## **5. Application of Income:**

All the incomes, earnings, movable and immovable property of the Society including any institutions thereof, howsoever derived, shall be solely utilized and applied towards the promotion of its aims and objects as set forth in this Memorandum of Association subject nevertheless in respect of the expenditure of grants made by the Government to such limitations as the Government may from time to time impose. No part of the income and property of the Society shall be paid or transferred directly or indirectly, by way of profit to the persons who at any time are or have been members of the Society or to any of them or to any persons claiming through them, provided that nothing herein contained shall prevent the payment in good faith of remuneration to any member thereof or to any person in return for any services rendered to the Society including any Society thereof or for traveling allowances, halting or other similar charges. No member

of the Society shall have any personal claim on any movable property of the Society or make profits whatsoever by virtue of this membership.

## **6. Funds of the Society:**

The finances of the Society shall consist of the following:

The Society shall have its own fund consisting of:

- i. all moneys provided by the government
- ii. all moneys received by the Society by way of grants, loans, gifts, donations, benefactions, bequests or transfers;
- iii. all moneys received by the Society from the user agencies
- iv. all moneys received by the Society in any other manner or from any other source.
- v. Rent, interest, dividend or any other income received upon the investment of the funds of the Society.

## **7. Amendment to the Memorandum and Articles of Association:**

Amendment shall be made in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Society in the manner provided by Section (8) of Andhra Pradesh Societies Registration Act, 2001.

## **8. Declaration:**

We, the following persons whose names and addresses are given below, having associated ourselves for the purpose described in this Memorandum and Articles of Association, do hereby subscribe our names to this Memorandum and Articles and Association and set our several and respective hands hereunto and form ourselves into a Society under the Andhra Pradesh Societies Registration; Act, 2001, on this **Twenty-second** day of the month of **March, 2003**.

Sl. No.	Name of the member & S/o., W/o., D/o.	Age	Occupation	Designation in the committee	Residential Address	Signature
1	Prof.V.S.Prasad S/o.Venkata Krishnnaiah	59	V.C.Dr.BRAOU	President	302, Hallmark Residency, Rd.#.3, Banjara Hills, Hyd-500034	Sd/-
2	K.Ambarish S/o. Bhoomaiah	58	Dir.of Collegiate Education	Vice-President	2-2-31/C, DD Colony, Baghamberpet, Hyd-500013	Sd/-
3	B.Krupanandam S/o. Bethapudi	56	Commissioner, Intermediate Education	Joint Secretary	122, Kavoori Hills, Guttala, Begumpet, Hyd-500033	Sd/-
4	S.Balasubrahmanyam S/o. S.L.Narasimham	50	Director I&PR	Treasurer	PJ12, Officers Colony, Panjagutta, Hyd.	Sd/-
5	Dr.K.Anji Reddy S/o. Veera Reddy	60	Commissioner, APVVP,DG,	Member MSIIS,AP	5/5, IAS Qtrs, Banjarahills, Hyderabad	Sd/-
6	CS Rama Devi D/o. CRJ Sarma (Late)		Commissioner, Women's Emp & Self Help Grp	Member	101, Padma Apts, Amberpet, Hyd.	Sd/-
7	Manmohan Singh S/o. Shrei Bharat Lal (Late)	43	Commissioner & Dir. School Education	Member	PJ 18 Officers Qrts, Hyderabad	Sd/
8	Subratha Bhattacharya S/o. Ananya (Late), Bhushan Bhattacharya	44	Commissioner & Director Agriculture	Member	H.No.6-3-574, Anandanagar, Khairatabad, Hyd.	Sd/
9	Jai Chandiram D/o. 11, Chandiram	65	Advisor Mana TV	Member	D2D, Munirka, DDA Flats, New Delhi-110067	Sd/-

**Witnesses :**

Sl. No	Name of the member & S/o, W/o, D/o	Age	Occupation	Residential Address	Signature
1	Padmaja Shaw W/o. Rajendra Shaw	49	Govt. Employee	Flat 402, Saket Apts, Shivam Rd, Vidyanagar, Hyderabad-44	Sd/-
2	Y.Butchi Raju S/o. Y.Siva Rao	48	Govt. Service 26	1-8-204/1, Rajendranagar, Hyderabad	Sd/-

## Document - II

### Bye-Laws

#### 1. Title:

These articles of association shall be called "Bye-laws" of SOCIETY FOR ANDHRA PRADESH NEWTORK (SAPNET)

#### 2. Definitions:

In these bye-laws, in addition to the definitions in the Memorandum of Association, unless the context otherwise signified:

- i. "Society" shall mean "SOCIETY FOR ANDHRA PRADESH NEWTORK"
- ii. "Chairman" shall mean the Chairman of the Governing Council.
- iii. "Vice-Chairman" shall mean the Vice Chairman of the Governing Council.
- iv. "Council" shall mean Governing Council of the Society.
- v. "Finance Committee" shall mean the Finance Committee of the Society.
- vi. "Financial Year" shall be from 1st day of April to 31st day of March of the subsequent year.
- vii. "Government" shall mean the State Government of Andhra Pradesh.
- viii. "Member" shall mean member of the Governing Council of the Society.
- ix. "Member Secretary" shall mean member secretary of the Governing Council of the society.
- x. "CEO" shall mean the Chief Executive Officer of the Society.

### **3. Authorities of the Society:**

The following shall be the authorities of the Society:

- i. The Governing Council
- ii. The Finance Committee
- iii. The Chairman
- iv. The Vice-Chairman
- v. The Chief Executive Officer
- vi. Such other authorities including but not limited to committee(s) appointed or nominated by the Council/Finance Committee/Chairman/Vice-Chairman/CEO.

### **4. The Governing Council:**

#### **a. Constitution:**

The members for GC will be nominated by GoAP. Once GC is constituted, they can co-opt any person as member to GC subject to a maximum of 3 such members.

#### **b. Extent of Council's Power:**

The general superintendence, direction and control of the affairs of the Society and its income and property shall be vesting in the managing committee of the Society which shall be called the Governing Council, hereinafter referred to as the 'the Council'.

#### **c. Composition of the Council:**

**The Council shall be composed of the following members:**

- |  |               |
|--|---------------|
| i. The Chief Secretary, Govt. of A.P.                            | Chairman      |
| ii. The Principal Secretary, IT&C Dept.                          | Vice-Chairman |
| iii. The Principal Secretary/Secretary<br>School Education Dept. | Member        |

iv.	The Principal Secretary, Higher Education Dept.	Member
v.	The Principal Secretary, Finance Dept.	Member
vi.	The Principal Secretary, Agriculture Dept	Member
vii.	The Principal Secretary, Health Dept.	Member
viii.	The Special Secretary to CM for IT.	Member
ix.	The Principal Secretary, PR&RD Dept.	Member
x.	The Principal Secretary, Social Welfare Dept	Member
xi.	The Director (Satcom), ISRO.	Member
xii.	The Director General, Dr. MCR HRD IAP.	Member
xiii.	The Principal Secretary, Youth Advancement Dept.	Member
xiv.	The Chief Executive Officer, Prasar Bharati.	Member
xv.	The Principal Secretary, Women & Child Welfare Dept.	Member
xvi.	The Principal Secretary, Tribal Welfare Dept.	Member
xvii.	The Commissioner, I&PR.	Member
xviii.	The Vice Chancellor, Dr.B.R.A.Open University.	Member
xix.	The Chief Executive Officer, SAPNET.	Member Secretary

**d. Powers and Duties of the Council:**

Subject to the Memorandum of Association and these rules, but without prejudice to the generality of powers and duties, the Council shall have full functional autonomy and shall exercise the following power inter-alia:

- i. take decision on policy matters relating to working of the Society.
- ii. consider and approve programmes of the Society within the scope of the objectives of the Society and within the scope of the budget.

- iii. frame Rules and Regulations and Bye-laws for the conduct of the affairs of the Society and to add to, amend, or repeal them from time to time.
- iv. consider, approve and authorize the funds of the Society.
- v. consider, and pass resolutions on the Annual Report and Annual Accounts of the Society and forward them to the Government
- vi. approve the budget estimates of the Society.
- vii. draw up development plan of the Society.
- viii. appoint committees or sub-committees, by whatever name called, comprising member(s) of the Council, external experts and officers of the Society as may be nominated by it for specific tasks, for the disposal of any of its business or for tendering advice on any matter pertaining to the management of the Society.
- ix. create permanent, temporary, ad-hoc, deputation or contractual posts for the Society, lay down terms and conditions of service of such employees and method of appointments thereto.
- x. approve pay and allowances and other welfare measures of the employees of the Society.
- xi. cooperate and collaborate with other state level, national and/or foreign institutions / international organizations in the pursuit of its objective.
- xii. acquire by gift, purchase, exchange, lease/hire or otherwise any property movable or immovable and to construct, improve/alter, demolish or repair buildings, works and constructions as may be necessary or convenient for carrying on the activities of the Society.
- xiii. deal with any property belonging to or vested in the Society so as to suit its best interest.

- xiv. delegate such of its power to the CEO and through him or her, to the other members of staff of the Society or any committee or sub-committees appointed by it, as it may consider necessary or desirable.
- xv. solicit and receive grants, gifts, donations or other contributions from the Central / State Government or from any other sources, provided that no benefaction shall be accepted by the Society which involved conditions or obligations contrary to the objectives of the Society.
- xvi. Do all such acts and things as are incidental or conducive to the discharge of the functions and attainment of any of the objects of the Society.

## **5. Meeting of the Council:**

### **a. Council Meeting once in Four months:**

The Council shall ordinarily meet once in every four months provided that the Chairman or Vice-Chairman or Member Secretary with the permission of Chairman, may whenever he thinks fit, or on a written requisition of not less than one-third of the existing members of the Council (fraction being rounded off to next higher number), call for a meeting. Not less than seven days notice shall be given for every meeting of the Council. In case of need, the Chairman or Vice-Chairman or Member Secretary with the permission of the Chairman, may call for a meeting at a shorter notice, provided that the interval between two consecutive meetings of the council shall not exceed six months.

### **b. Quorum for Council Meetings:**

One-third of the existing strength of the Council or five members, whichever is lower shall constitute a quorum for any meeting of the Council, any fraction being rounded off to the next higher number.

### **c. Decision by Majority:**

Decisions of the council shall be by a simple majority of the members present.

**d. Votes of Council Members and Casting Vote of Chairman:**

Each member of the council including the Chairman shall have one vote and if there shall be an equality of votes on any question to be determined by the Council, the chairman of the meeting shall, in addition to his own vote, have and exercise a casting vote to decide the issue.

**e. Meeting to be chaired by:**

Every meeting of the Council shall be chaired by the Chairman. In his absence, the meeting shall be chaired by Vice-Chairman or one of the members chosen from amongst the Council members present at the meeting.

**f. Resolution by circulation:**

Any resolutions may be adopted by circulation among all its members and any resolution so circulated and adopted by a majority of the members who have signified their approval or disapproval on such resolutions shall be as effective and binding as if such resolution had been passed at a meeting of the Council.

**6. Finance Committee:**

- a. There shall be Finance Committee consisting of such persons as members as may be decided by the Governing Council. The Chief Executive Officer of the Society shall be Ex-officio Chairman of the Finance Committee.
- b. The Governing Council may delegate such powers and responsibilities to be Finance Committee, as it may deem desirable for effective functioning of the Society.

**7. Chairman:**

**a. Appointment and Terms of Appointment:**

The Chief Secretary, Government of Andhra Pradesh shall be the ex-officio chairman of the Society.

**b. Functions and Powers:**

- i. The Chairman shall chair all meetings of Governing Council and have general supervision over all affairs of the Society. He will also approve such administrative, financial and other policy matters of the Society, as he may think necessary from time to time, in the interest of effective functioning of the Society.
- ii. The Vice-Chairman shall chair the meetings of Governing Council in the absence of Chairman and have general supervision over all affairs of the society and will scrutinize all files / proposals before forwarding them to the Chairman.

**8. Chief Executive Officer:**

**a. Appointment and terms of Appointment:**

The CEO shall be appointed by Government of A P on such terms and conditions as may be decided by it.

**b. Casual Vacancy:**

In the event of the post of CEO remaining vacant for any reason it shall be open to the Council to authorize any member of the Council or a senior officer of the Society to exercise such powers, functions and duties of the CEO, as the Council may deem fit, till a CEO is duly appointed.

**c. Functions and Powers:**

The CEO shall be the principal academic and executive officer of the Society. He/She reports to the Chairman through Vice-Chairman and sends all relevant proposals / files through the Vice-Chairman. He shall be responsible for the day to day management of its activities and overall academic functioning and administration of the Society. He/She shall discharge these responsibilities in accordance with the Rules and Regulations and Bye-Laws of the Society. In case of urgency, he may take such action as may be necessary with the approval of the Vice-Chairman. It shall be the

responsibility of the CEO to see that all moneys are expended for the purpose for which they are granted or allotted. He/She shall be the custodian of the records and such other property of the Society as the Council may commit to his charge.

Subject to the provisions of these rules and regulations, and the bye-laws made there under, the CEO shall, inter-alia, exercise the following functions and powers:

- i. All expenditure within the budget shall be approved and sanctioned by the CEO, or a member of the staff to whom he may delegate this power, provided that such expenditure does not exceed the allocation. In case of need, make re-appropriation with the approval of the Chairman / Vice-Chairman.
- ii. Submit the accounts, budget estimates and other proposals of the Society to the Chairman through Vice-Chairman for approval.
- iii. Conducts all official correspondence on behalf of the Society and the Council.
- iv. Convenes meetings of the Council with the approval of the Chairman / Vice-Chairman.
- v. Be responsible for implementation of the resolutions passed by the Council.
- vi. Assign tasks to the staff members of the Society, manage the undertaking of these tasks and exercise overall control including disciplinary action on staff members.
- vii. Amend / modify / extend terms and conditions of service and related matters of the contractual employees of the Society from time to time, with the approval of the Chairman / Vice-Chairman.
- viii. Engage technical / professional and skilled personnel on assignment basis and approve payment for performance of such jobs / works.

- ix. To recruit staff against sanctioned positions, and extend the term of officers on deputation with the approval of the Chairman / Vice-Chairman.
- x. To rent out the spare capacities of infrastructure and facilities of the Society to outside users / institutions / agencies on payment and take other measures as may be required in the broader interest of making the Society self-sustaining.
- xi. Retain or employ visiting faculty / professionals / technical advisors / consultants in consonance with objectives of the Society and to pay such fees or other remuneration as may be fixed.
- xii. Negotiate, enter into and make contracts and deeds on behalf of the Society.
- xiii. Appoint committees or sub-committees by whatever name called, to manage such activities as he / she may deem fit and / or otherwise authorize any officer of the Society to appoint such committees.
- xiv. Participate or nominate members of staff to participate in national/ international conferences in the areas of interest to the Society.
- xv. Execute all contracts, deeds and assurances of property made on behalf of the Society.
- xvi. Draw, make, accept and endorse cheques, notes or other negotiable instruments for the purpose of the Society.
- xvii. Re-delegate some of his powers to any of his subordinates.
- xviii. Exercise such other powers as may be assigned to him by these rules and regulations and bye-laws framed there under.
- xix. To record and maintain the minutes book of the meetings of the Governing Council.

**9. Functions and Powers of Other Authorities and Officers:**

The powers and duties of the authorities and officers other than those mentioned in these rules shall be as specified by the Council or in the bye-laws framed for the purpose.

**10. Remuneration and Allowances:**

The members of the Council and members of the Finance Committee shall be entitled to such remuneration and allowances from the Society as may be approved by the Governing Council.

**11. Insurance and Provident Funds:**

The Society shall constitute for the benefit of employees including the CEO in such manner and subject to such conditions as may be prescribed by the bye-laws, such insurance, provident fund and other employees welfare schemes, as it may deem fit.

**12. Indemnity:**

- a. The honorary officers, members of the Council, members of committees/ sub committees, CEO, auditors and other senior staff of the Society may be indemnified out of the funds of the Society against any expenses or liability incurred by them in the course of discharge of their respective duties.
- b. No honorary officer or member of the Council or member of a committee of the Society, or member of sub-committee shall be liable for any act other than his own for signing any receipt or other document or for doing any other fact for the sake of conformity only, or for any loss or expenses which may be occasioned to the Society, other than as a direct result of his own negligence or willful misconduct.

**13. Funds of the Society:**

- a. The Society shall have its own fund consisting of :
  - all monies provided by the government
  - all monies received by the Society by way of grants, loans, gifts, donations, benefactions, bequests or transfers;
  - all monies received by the Society from the user agencies.

- all monies received by the Society in any other manner or from any other source
  - rent, interest, dividend or any other income received upon the investment of the funds of the Society.
- b. All monies credited to the Fund shall be deposited in such banks or invested in such manner, as the CEO may deem expedient from time to time in the interest of the Society.
- c. The fund and the property of the Society howsoever derived, shall be applied only towards the attainment of the objects as specified in the Memorandum of Association of the Society.

#### **14. Operation of Bank Account:**

The bank accounts of the Society shall be kept in the name of the Society and shall be operated upon jointly by the CEO and one more officer of the Society as nominated by the CEO.

#### **15. Accounts and Audit:**

- a. The CEO shall keep or cause to be kept proper accounts of the receipts and payments, income and expenditure and of the property, assets and liabilities of the Society. The annual accounts shall be made up by the end of the financial year.
- b. The accounts of the Society shall be audited by an auditor who shall be chartered accountant or a firm of chartered accountants as defined in the Chartered Accountants Act 1949 and shall be appointed by the Chairman.
- c. The accounts of the Society as audited and certified by the auditors shall be forwarded annually to the Government.

#### **16. Annual Report:**

The CEO shall prepare for every year a report of its activities during the previous year and submit the report to the Council on or before the expiry of six months from the close of financial year. Copies of the report shall be forwarded to the Government.

**17. Budget:**

The annual budget of the Society shall be drawn up by the CEO. It shall be considered and adopted by the Council with or without modification.

**18. Power to make Bye-laws:**

The Council shall whenever necessary frame, amend or repeal bye-laws not inconsistent with these rules for the administration and management of the affairs of the Society and in particular to provide for the following matters:

- i. the classification and procedure for appointment of officers and staff of the Society.
- ii. the terms and tenure of appointment, terms of deputation of contractual service. Salaries and allowances, rules of discipline and other conditions of service of the faculty, officers and staff of the Society.
- iii. conduct of business by the Governing Council, and any other committees constituted by it, the powers and functions of such committees and term of office of their membership.
- iv. the tenure of office, salaries and allowances and other conditions of service of the officers and employees of the Society.
- v. the management of the properties of the Society.
- vi. the creation of posts of Class-I Officers, Class-II Officers and posts of other officers and employees of the Society, and the appointment of persons to such posts including the requisite qualifications thereof.
- vii. the manner in which the conditions subject to which, pension and provident funds may be constituted for the benefit of officers and other employees of the Society.
- viii. the authentication of the orders and decision of the Council

of the affairs of the Society including those which by these rules are to be or may be prescribed by the Bye-laws.

**19. Seal of the Society :**

The Council shall provide a seal of the Society and also provide for its safe custody and the seal shall never be used except with the authority of the Council previously given. One member of the Society shall sign every instrument to which the seal is affixed, and every such instrument shall be countersigned by the CEO or his/her nominee.

**20. Acts and proceedings not to be invalidated by vacancies etc.**

No act or proceeding of the Council or any authority of the Society or any committee constituted under this Act, shall be questioned on the ground merely of the existence of any vacancy or defect in the election, nomination or appointment of a person, nomination or appointment of a person acting as a member thereof any irregularity in its procedure not affecting the merits of the case.

**21. Arbitration and Reconciliation:**

- a. Any dispute between two or more members of the Society, which has an impact upon the activities of the Society, shall be resolved through arbitration and the council shall appoint arbitrator(s) for that purpose.
- b. Any dispute between one or more members of the Society and the Society, shall be referred to arbitrators(s) acceptable to the member (s) and the Society and shall be resolved through arbitration.
- c. The Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996, shall apply to all arbitration proceedings.
- d. No member of the Society, nor the Council shall take recourse to a court of law for settlement of any dispute without first exhausting the remedy of Arbitration as provided herein.

**22. Legal Proceedings:**

The Society may sue or be sued in the name of the CEO or such person as shall be determined by the rules and regulations of the Society and in default of such determinations, such person as shall be determined by the Council.

**23. Alterations of the Rules and Regulations:**

The alteration, amendment or extension made or amalgamation effected shall be reported to the Inspector General of Registration & Stamps as required under Sec 8 of Andhra Pradesh Societies Registration Act, 2001 (Andhra Pradesh Act No.35 of 2001)

**24. Dissolution:**

The Society shall be dissolved in accordance with the procedure laid down under section 24 of Andhra Pradesh Societies Registration Act, 2001 (Andhra Pradesh Act No.35 of 2001). If on dissolution of the Society there shall remain after satisfaction of its tax and liabilities, any property whatsoever, the same shall be dealt with in such manner as the Government may decide.

**25. Application of the Act:**

All the provisions of the Andhra Pradesh Societies Registration Act, 2001 (Andhra Pradesh Act 35 of 2001) as amended from time to time shall be applicable to the Society.

We the undersigned certify that this is a correct copy of the Rules and Regulations of the SOCIETY FOR ANDHRA PRADESH NETWORK.

Sl. No.	Name of the member & S/o., W/o., D/o.	Age	Occupation	Designation in the committee	Residential Address	Signature
1	Prof.V.S.Prasad S/o.Venkata Krishnaiiah	59	V.C.Dr.BRAOU	President	302, Hallmark Residency, Rd.#.3, Banjara Hills, Hyd-500034	Sd/-
2	K.Ambarish S/o. Bhoomaiah	58	Dir.of Collegiate Education	Vice-President	2-2-31/C, DD Colony, Baghamberpet, Hyd-500013	Sd/-
3	B.Krupanandam S/o. Bethapudi	56	Commissioner, Intermediate Education	Joint Secretary	122, Kavoori Hills, Guttala, Begumpet, Hyd-500033	Sd/-
4	S.Balasubrahmanyam S/o. S.L.Narasimham	50	Director I&PR	Treasurer	PJ12, Officers Colony, Panjagutta, Hyd.	Sd/-
5	Dr.K.Anji Reddy S/o. Veera Reddy	60	Commissioner, APVVP,DG,	Member MSIS,AP	5/5, IAS Qtrs, Banjarahills, Hyderabad	Sd/-
6	CS Rama Devi D/o. CRJ Sarma (Late)		Commissioner, Women's Emp & Self Help Grp	Member	101, Padma Apts, Amberpet, Hyd.	Sd/-
7	Manmohan Singh S/o. Shrei Bharat Lal (Late)	43	Commissioner & Dir. School Education	Member	PJ 18 Officers Qrts, Hyderabad	Sd/
8	Subratha Bhattacharya S/o. Ananya (Late), Bhushan Bhattacharya	44	Commissioner & Director Agriculture	Member	H.No.6-3-574, Anandanagar, Khairatabad, Hyd.	Sd/
9	Jai Chandiram D/o. 11, Chandiram	65	Advisor Mana TV	Member	D2D, Munirka, DDA Flats, New Delhi-110067	Sd/-

**Witnesses :**

Sl. No	Name of the member & S/o, W/o, D/o	Age	Occupation	Residential Address	Signature
1	Padmaja Shaw W/o. Rajendra Shaw	49	Govt. Employee	Flat 402, Saket Apts, Shivam Rd, Vidyanagar, Hyderabad-44	Sd/-
2	Y.Butchi Raju S/o. Y.Siva Rao	48	Govt. Service 26	1-8-204/1, Rajendranagar, Hyderabad	Sd/-